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COMPLAINT AND CONSENT AGREEMENT

A. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

I. This is a civil administrative enforcement action instituted pursuant to
Section 3008(a)( I) of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
("RCRA ") as ameoded. 42 U.S.c. § 6928(a){I). and the Consolidated
Rules of Practice Governing the Administrdtive Assessment of Civil
Penalties and the Revocalion rrennination or Suspension of Pennits,
40 C.F.R. Part 22, as revised by 64 Fed. Reg. 141 (July 23.1999).
Complainant is the United Slates Environmental ProtC{:tion Agency.
Region IX ("EPA"). Respondent is the Commonwealth Health Center
("CHC" or "Respondent"). CHC is part of Ihe government of the
Commonweallh of the Northern Marianas Islands ("CNMI").

2. CHC owns and operates a hospital in Saipan. CNMI (the "facility").
In the course of operating the hospital. CHC generates and stores
certain hazardous wastes at the facility. which constitute "universal
waste," within the meaning of 40 CFR § 273.9.
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3 rlns Consent Agreement and Final Order Pursuant 1040 CFR §§22.13
and 22 18 CCAFO"), pursuant 10 ..W C F.R § 22 13(b),
simultaneously commences and concludes this proceedmg, wherem
EPA alleges Ihat CHC faIled 10 label unhersal \\ast.e, illegally
disposed of universal waste and failed to respond to requests for
infomlatioll submitted to CHC by EPA pursuant to RCRA Section
3001,42 U.s c. § 6921. Each of these allegations constItute a
violation of Section 3001 el seq of RCRA, 42 USc. § 692\ et seq.

B. NRISDlCTI.QN

4. CHC is a "person" as defined in Section 1004(15) of RCRA, 42
US.C.§6903(l5)and40C.F.R §26010.

5, CHC is the "operator" ora facility as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 260.10.

6 CHC is the "oWTler" ofa faCIlity as defined in 40 C F.R § 260.10

7 CHC gencrates or has g.;nerated, and stores or has stored, matenals
that are "wastes" as defined in 40 CFR §§ 260.10 and 261 .2. The
wastes generated by CHe are "ulllversal waste" wnhlll the meamng of
40C.F.R *§260 10, 261.9, and part 273.

8. CIIC is a "Universal waste handler" as defined III 40 CF R § 273.9.

9 The universal wastes generated and stored althe faeihty mclude
"batter(H~s)," "Iamp(s)," "mercury eOlllainmg equipment" and
··thermostat(s);· as those terms are each defined m.tO CFR § 273.9.

10. CHC claims to be a "small qu..1nllty handler" of universal waste 1-\ ithm
the meamng of 40 C.F.R. § 2739.

11. On June 19, 2003, EPA conducted a RCRA Compliance EvaluatIon
Inspection (""CEI'") at the facility On May 6, 200.t, EPA submItted an
InformatIOn Request Lcttcr to CHe pursuant to RCRA $eellon 3007,
42 USC §6Q:!7. After CHe faIled 10 respond to the request b) the
deadline stated, EPA re;.ubmitted the request Based upon the
findmgs made durmg the CEI, addinonallllfonnallon obtalllcd
subsequcnt to the eEl. and CHe's tallur<.; to respond to the RCR ..·\
Seclion 3007 infommtloll request leiter by the deadlllle requested.
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EPA detennmed that CHC ha~ \lolated RCRA and the regulations
adopted pursuant thereto.

12. Any violation ofregulation~ promul£ated pursuant to RCRA Subtitle
C, sections 3001 3019 of RCRA, 41 V.S.c. §§ 6921-6939,
COnSl1nlleS a violatIOn of RCRA. Violations of RCRA Subtitle Care
subject to the assessment of CIvil or crillllnal penalties and compliance
orders in accordance with SCCllon3008 ofRCM, 42 U.s.C. § 6928
and the Federal Civil Penalties Inflation Adjustment Act ofl990, 28
U.s C § 1"61 et ~elf, as amended by the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1996, 31 U.S.C. § 3701 et sr!q

13. SectIon 3008 of RCRA, 41 U.s.c. § 6918, authorizes the EPA
Administrator to issue orders requiring compliance immediately or
within a specified time and/or assessing a civil penally for violation of
any reqlllrement of Subtrtle C of RCRA. Section 300 I ofRCRA e/
seq., 42 U.S.C. § 6921, et seq.

14 The Administrator has delegated the authority under Section 3008 of
RCRA. 42 US.c. § 6928, to the EPA Regional Administrator for
ReglOn IX, who has redelegated thIS authorrty to the Director of the
Waste Management Division.

C. ALLEGED VIOLAnQNS

COUNT I
Failure to Properl)' l\lanage Uni\ersal Waste

15. Paragraphs I through 14 above arc incorporated herein by thIS
reference as If they were set forth here III theIr entirety.

16 40 C FR § 27318 prohibits a small quantity handierofulliversal
\\aste from sendmg or takmg unIversal waste to a place other than
another Ulliversa\ \\aste handler, a destmatlon faclln} or foreign
destmatlOn

17, 40 C f,R, *27.111 prohibIts a small quantity handler of universal
\Vibte from di~posll1g of unIversal \\3ste
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18 At the tllnc of the CEI, CIIC \\3:. dlsposmg of some portion of its
Ulll\ersal waste in the trash

19. Therefore. EPA alleges thaI CHC has VIolated 40 C,F R. §§ 273.1 J

and 273. 18, and RCRA

COUNT 2
Failure to Label Uniwrsal Waste

20. Paragraph~ I through 19 above are Incorporated herein by this
reference as If they were set forth here in their entirety

21. 40 CF,R, § 27314 requires that small quantity handlers of universal
waste label or mark the universal waste to Idemify the type of
universal waste.

22, In accordance with 40 CF.R § 273.14(a), universal wasle batteries,
or containers where balteries are comamed, must be labeled or clearly
marked with any of the followmg phrases: "Universal Waste
Banel)"(ies)," "Waste BaltCI)'(ies)," or ··Used Battery(ies)."

23. In accordance \\ith -10 C.F.R § 273.1-I(e), each lamp or container or
package in \\ hich such lamps are contained must be labeled or marked
clearly with one of the following phrases: "Ulliversal Waste
Lamp(s):' "Waste Lamp(s):' or "Used Lamp(s)."·

24. At the lime of the eEl, (He failed to label its waste baueries and
waste lamps III accordance \\lth 40 ( F R. § 273.14.

25. Therefore, EPA alleges that (He has violated 40 CF R. § 273.14 and
ReRA

COUNT 3
Failure to Respond to a Request for Information

26 Paragraphs J through 25 above are Illcorporated herem by thIS
reference a5 tf they \\ere set limh here in their entirety.

17 Pursuant to RCRA SectIOn 3007, 42 U.s.C Ii 6917, "[flor [the J
purpose~ of enforclllg the prO\ 151011<; [of RCRA Subtitle C], allY



person "ho generates, store,..treab. uanspons. dlspo~ of. or
otherwIse handle:> or has handled hazardous wastes shall, upon request
of any officer, employee or rq>resenlati\-e oftbe EnVIronmental
PrOleclIon Agency, duly desigrum."d b)" the Administrator furnish
mformatlon relatmg 10 MlCh "asI~

18 On or aboUl May~, 1004. EPA submllled a \\11nen request for
mfommiion to CHC in accordance \\ lIh RCRA Section 3007. 42
USc. § 6927. TIus \HltteulIlformatioll request reqUired a response
within 30 days of receipt CHC re<:eived the infonnl\noll request on
or about May 13, 2004. No response 10 the request was submilled to
EPA by CHe by the deadline of Jllne 12.200-1

29. On Of aboul October 13,200-1, EPA resubmitted the written request to
CHC by faCSImIle CHe failed to respond to the request UIIIlI, OD
June 14, 1005. CHC ans"ered I'PA's May 1.2005 NOllficalJOII of
Inlent 10 File a Dctennination of VIolatIon, Compliance Order and
NOllce of Right to Request a Heanng trecei\"ed by CHC on Of abouf
May 17, 2005).

30. CHC failed fO respond 10 EPA's mformallon req~lletter11\ a I1mely
f<lihlon 1I\ \IOlallOn ofRCRA Section 3001, 42 U.SC . 6917.

D ~MS OF SETILEMENI

31 Respondent CI IC l:onsenlS 10 the assessment of a CIVil penalty of
EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS (S8,OOO.OO) and the performance of
a Supplemental Enviromnent Project ("SEP") III full saILsfaclion of all
claims for Civil penalties for Ihe violations alleged in Seellon C of tillS
CAFO, Such cml penalf)-' amOllnt shall become due and payable
unmedmtely upon Respondent CHe's receipt ora true and correel
copy ofllus CAFO Respondent or the Go\'emmenl of emu mllSl
pa) the CI\oII penalt) no laler Ihan T1IIRTY (30) CALENDAR DA YS
after the efTecll\e date of thIS CAFO

~2 1 he aforesaid S<:tllement amount \\-as based upoo the facts alleged
herem anJ EPA's conslderau~'no~lhe statutOf) factors oflhe
seno~ne~~of (He" SvlOlallonl' and an)' good rallh efTon:. b) CHC to
comply \\ ilh all apph..:abk reqUlro:menls as pro\ Ided 1ll RCRA Section
JOO8/a}/ J I. ,12 US.C § 6ll28(all) I. and III a.:cordanl;e \\ llh the
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applicable provIsions of the "June 2003 RCRA Ci\'11 Penalty Policy"
Section 3008(g) of RCRA, 42 USc. § 6928(g), as adjusted by the
Debt Collection lmprovt:menl ACf of 1996, see 61 Fed. Reg. 69360
(Dec. 31, 1996) and 69 Fed Reg. 7121 (Feb. 13, 2004), authorizes a
ciVil penalty of up to TWENTY-SEVFN THOUSAND, FIVE
f IUNDRED DOLLARS ($27,500) per day for violations of Subtitle C
of RCRA, 42 U,SC, § 6921 el seq, occurring on or after January 31,
1997 but before March 16, 2004, and a civil penally of up to
THlRTY~TWO THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED OOLLARS
(S32.500) per day for violations of Subtitle C of RCRA. 42 USc. §
6921 el seq. occumng after March 15,2004. The settlement amount
was also based upon CHC's agreement to perform a SEP.

33 No later than THIRTY (30) CALENDAR DAYS after the date on
which this CAFO is mailed or hand-deli\ ered to Respondent,
Respondent shalllIlltiate a project for a mercury exchange project
\\here CHC Will exchange digital thermometers for mercury
thermometers from dillies and households withm Ihe Commonwealth

34, CHC shall complt:te the following SEP, which the parties agree is
IIltende<lto secure ~igrtlficanl em ironmental health protection and
tmpro\ements

(a) Respondent shall complete the SEP wilnin one year follOWing
the eflecti\e date of tins CAFO by completing Ihe purchase of
sufficient non-mercury thermometers to provide as
replacements for a reasonably estimated number of mercury
thennometers, providmg inronnation 10 c1imcs and households
within the Commonwealth aboul the mercury exchange
program and then making the mercury free thennometers
available to the public

(b) Withm SIXTY (60) CALENDAR DAYS after the dale Oil
\\llIch thiS CAFO IS mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent
CHC, CHe shall submit a work plan ("Work Plan") for EPA
revie\\ and appro\al The Work Plan shall address work
actiVities to be undertaken after the due date fur the WorL Plan
and need not address \\ork activities 10 be undertaken prior to
that dale After receipt of the Work Plan, EPA \\ll1nol1fy the
Respondenl. in writing. regardlllg (II any detlclcm:lcs 1Illhe
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Work Plan which reqUire mo<lificatlOlI by Respondent,
induding the appropriate time frame for resubm1ltal of a
modified Work Plan; (2) the approval oflhe Work Plan by EPA
with modification; or (3) the appro\al of the Work Plan by
EPA

35. The t01a1 expenditure for Ihe SEP shall be not less than SEVENTEEN
THOUSAND ($ 17,000.00) rn accordance with the specifications set
fonh 1II the Scope of Work. Respondent shall include documentation
of the expenditures made in connection with the SEP as part of the
SEP Completion Report.

36. Respondent CHC hereby certifies that, as of the dale of this Consent
Agreement, CHC is not reqUIred to perform or develop the SEP by
any federal, CNMI or local law or regulation; nor IS CHe reqUIred to
perform or develop the SEP by any other agreement, grant or as
injunctive reliefrn this or any other casco Respondent CHC funher
certifies that it has not recel\·ed, and IS not presently negotiating to
receive, credit in any other enforcement actlon for the SEP

37. Respondent CHe shall submit a SEP Completion Report to EPA
withm 365 days of the eITectrve date of thIS CAfO. The SEP
Completion Report shall contain the following information·

(i) A detailed descripllon of the SI::P as Implemented;
(ii) A description of any problems encountered dunng

implementatioll of the SEP and the solultons
thereto;

(Iii) Itemized costs;
(IV) CertificatlOll of all measures carned out lI\

furtherance of the SEP pursu.ant to the
proVISions of this CAFO. and

(q A descnptlon of the en\lronmental benefits
resulting from implementation of the SEP (wilh a
quantification of the benefits, If feasible).

38. Respondr:nt CHC agrees Ihat failure to subrnlllh~ SEP Completion
Report reqUIred b~ the foregomg ParJ.:;raph ;;hall be d~ellled ;l

VIOlatIon of thiS CAFO and Respondent shall ba:omc liable for
,;npulated penaltIes pur,u<1nt 10 Paragraph 58(e l. below

,
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39. Respondent shall mamtam legible copies of documentation of the
mercury themlOmeter exchanges 10 the SEP Completion Repon and
shall provide the documentalJon [0 EPA not more than ten \\<orkmg
days after CHes receIpt of a request for such infommtion
Respondent shall include v- itll the SEP Completloll Report the
follov- ing certificatlon under penalty of law that the mformatiOil
cOlltamed in the SEP Complellon Report IS true. accurate and not
misleadmg, by the signature of its DIrector on the following
statement: "1 certify under penalty of law that I haw exammed and
am familiar with the infonnation submitted in this SEP Completion
Report and all its attachments and that, bascd on my inquiry of those
mdividuals immedIately responsible for oblalliing and preparing the
information, I believe that the lllfonnation is true, acctrrate and
complete, I am av-are that {here are SIgnificant penalties for
submitting false information, mduding the poSSIbility of fines and
Imprisonment

.to Respondent CHC shall submit all noHces and reports reqUIred by thIS
CAFO by first class maillO:

Damcl Fernandez
WST3
U.s Envlrollrnental Protection Agency
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, Califonna 94105

41 In itemizing its costs mthe SEP Completlon Report, Respondent shall
clearly identify and provtde acceptable documentation for all eligible
SEP costs. Where the SEP Completion Report includes costs not
eligible for SEP l;:rc<!ll, those costs mllst be clearly idenl1fied as such
For the purposes of this Paragraph, ""acceptable documentallon·'
mcludes il\\OICeS, purchase ordef1>. or other documentation {hat
speCIfically identIfies and itemizes the mdlVidual costs of the goods
and or sen Ices for \\hich payment is bemg made, Canceled drafts do
not const1lute acceptable documentation unless such drafts
~pecllically Idenllfy and lIemlZe the illdl\'ldual costs of the goods
and 'or sen Ice~ for which pay-ment is belllg made
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42 Respondent CHC ag.recs that EPA or the CNMJ DEQ may Inspecllhe
hospital (xlIII:)' at any lime In order 10 con finn that the SEP IS being
undertaken m coofonnlty \\1111 the representations made herem.

43. After receipt oftne SEP Complellon Report, EPA \lolll DOllt) CHC. m
\\TItmg. regarding (a) an} deficiencies in the SEP Complellon Report
itself along \\l1h a grant of an addilionaltheny (30) day s for CHC to
correct any defiCienCIes; or (b) IndIcate that EPA concludes that the
project has been completed saul>factorily, or (c) delenmne Ihat the
project has not been completed satlsfactorily and ~ek stipulated
penalllcs III accordance with Paragraph 58 herem

44 If EPA eleclS to exercise option (a) under the foregomg Paragraph,
IC.• If the SE? Completion Repon IS detennined to be defiCIent. but
EPA has not yet made a final determmalloD aboullhe adequacy of
SEP completion Itself, EPA shall pennit CHC lhe opportunily to
object m \loritmg 10 the notification ofdeficlcnq gl\en pu~uant 10 the
foregomg Paragraph wlthm ten (10) days of receIpt of such
nOlificatiOIl EPA and CHC shall ha\'e an addillonallhlrty l30) days
from the receIpt by EPA of the notlfica!lon of objcctKIn to reach
agrotemelll on changes oeces~ 10 Ihe SEP Complelion Report If
agreemenl cannot be reached on any such Issue \luhln thiS thirty (30)
day period. EPA shall provide a wTIllen statement of Its deciSion on
any defiCienCIes m the SEP CompletIon Report 10 cne, whICh
deCIsion shall be final and bindmg upon CHC. CHC agrees to correct
the defiCienCies 10 the SEP Completion Repon which have been
identified by EPA Within tllIfty (30) days of receipt of tile notIce of
defiCiency pursuant to the foregomg Paragraph or, if the pro\1sions of
this Paragraph are invoked, \~ ithlll thiny days of receipt of EPA's
\~ritten statement of its decISIon re~ardmg defiCienCIes III the SEP
Completion Report. or pay supulaled penalties 10 accordance with
Paragraph 58 herem

45 If EPA elects to exercise option fc) under Paragraph 43. abo.. e. EPA
shall rermit CHC the opponunll~ 10 object m ..\TItmg-IO EPA·s
deternllnalion pW"'5uant 10 IhlS Paragraph with'n ten t 101 days of
receipt of such I'OllficatlOn Of reJe.:lloll EPA and CBC shall hale an
additl..mallhln~ \30Hia~s from I~ receIpt b~ the EPA oftbe
notlficallOn of objectIon 10 reach an :JftI"eement reganhng the
d~tenmnatlon whether th~ SFP ha~ bem satisfactOfilr completed If



agreement between the Panies cannot be reached on tlus
detenninatlOn within this thin) (30) day period, theil, within twent~

(20) days of the end of the 30-day period above, EPA shall provide a
\\Tilten statement of Its decision to CHC and to the Director, Waste
Management DiVision ("'Division Director"). EPA's written statement
of deCisiOn shall be subject to review by the Division DIrector
Respondelll shaH have t\\ emy (20) days after receipt ofEPA's \uiUen
statement of decision to provide the DIvision Director with its written
response to EPA's statement of deci"ion The DivisIOn Director shall
then pro\ ide a \\Tiltcn statement of its decision 011 adequacy of the
completion of the SEP to Respondent, which decIsion shall be final
and binding upon Respondent CHe. The Panies agree thaI the
detenninalion of the Division Director regarding the satIsfactory or
unsatisfactory completion of the SEP be deemed effective within ten
(10) workmg days after Its issuance. [n the event the SEP is not
completed satisfactorily as comemphlled herein, as detenllined by
EPA, stipulated penalties shall be due and payable by CHe 10 EPA in
accordance wilh Paragraph 58 herem

46. Any public statement, oral or written, m prim, film or other media,
made by CHC or the Government ofCNMI making TefeTenc~ to the
SEP shall include the followmg language.

"ThIS project was undertaken m conneCtion with
the settlement of an enforcement action taken by
the U,S EnvlTonmemal Protection Agency for
violations or the Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act."

E "DM[SS[ONS AND WAIVERS QF RIGHT~

47, Respondell! CHC admits and agrees thaI the EPA Administrator and
RegIOn IX Adlnulistrator have Jurisdlcllon and authority over the
subject mattc~ of the aCliOll cO\llmcnced in thiS CAFO and over CHe
pursuant 10 Section 3008 ofReRA, 42 U SC *6928, and 40 eFR §§
nA and 22 37. FUI1hcr. for the purposes of this proceeding, CHC
admits to thcJurisdlctlOnal allegations or facts and law set fonh III

Section B orthl" CAFtl (He con"elll~ 10 and agrees not to contest
EPA's jurisdiction and authoTlty to enter into and issue tillS CAFO
and to enforce liS terms. r·urther. (He \Hll nol contest EPA's



Junsdlclion and authority to compel compliance \"ith this CAFO in
any enforcement proceedmgs, either adminiSlratl"e or Judicml, or 10

Impose sanctions for VIOlatIons of this CAFO.

48. Respondent CHC neither admits L10r denies any allegations of facl or
law set fonh in Section C of this CAFo. CHe hereby waives any
fights 1f may ha\e to contest the allegalions set forth 111 this CAFO,
\\ aives any rights it may have to a hearing on any issue relating to the
factual allegations or legal conclusions sel fonh in this CAFO.
including without limitation a hearing pursuant 10 Se<:tioll 3008(b) of
RCRA, 42 USc. §6928(b) and hereby consents to the ISSu.1nce of
Ihis CAfD without adjudication. In addition, Respondent CHC
hereby waives any righls ilmay have to appeal the Final Order
attached to this Consent Agr~ment and made pan of this CAFD,

f, PARTIES BQUND

49 This CAFO shall apply 10 and be binding upon Respondent CHC and
its agents, successors and assigns and upon all persons aclmg under or
for Respondent CHC, until such lime as the Civil penalty required
under Sections D and G has been paid Jll accordance with Section G
and any delays in perfollnance and/or sllpulated penalues have been
reoolved. At such lime as those malters are conduded, this CAFQ
shall terminate and constitute full settlement of lhe violations alleged
herein.

50. No change in ownership or any olher legal staws relating to the
facility WIll in any wa) alter CHC" s obligations and responsibilities
under this CAFO.

51 Respondent CHC shall gi"e pnor notice of this CAFO to any
succesoor III mterest prior to transfer of ownership or operation of the
faclln) and shall notify EPA wilhm se"en (7) days pnor to such
transfer umillhe lenninatlon of Ibis CAFO,

5~ The underSIgned representative of the Government of CNMI hereby
cemfies he l}f she l~ fully authOrized 10 enter 1111U lhlS CAfO. to
execute and to legally blOd Respondent (He 10 1\

II



G. PAYMENT QF CIVIL PENALTY

53. In addition to performance of the SEP, Respond~m CHC consents to
the assessment of and agrees to pay a CIVIl penalty of EIGHT
THOUSAND DOLLARS (S8000.OO) in full settlement of the federal
civil penalt)' claIms set forth in this CAFO

54 Respondem shaH submIt payment of the EIGHT THOUSAND
DOLLAR (S8000OO) CIvil penalty within thirty (30) calendar days of
the Effeclive Dale of Ihls CAfO. The Effective Date of thIS CAFO is
the date the Final Order, signed by the Regional Judicial Officer, is
IHed with the Regional Hearing Clerk. Payment shall be made by
certified or cashier's check payable to ""Treasurer of the United
States" transmitted to the appropriate address as indicated below'

{-'or a check drawn on a Us. hallk sefJI by fl'K/l-far US. P()~lal

Sen'ice mati.

U,S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 9
PO. Box 371099M
Pittsburgh, PA 15251

Fora check dr(lln/ un a {1,S. ballk\1!1/I hy expre,\·j mati'

Mellon Chent ServICe Cemcr
ATTN' Shift Supervisor Lockbox 311099M
500 Ross Street
Pittsburgh, PA 15262-0001

f"or a che(·k drawlI 01/ afim:iRfl hank \<uh 110 (1S branchc\.

Cmbank Dehl\\are
Global Cheque Collections
PO. Bo" 15962
Wllmlllgton, OF 19R50-596.:!

At the tJmepa~ment IS so made a cop\" of the .:heck ,hall be :.ent to
each ofth.: follo\\1II1; RI,':,lOn [X addre,,~s:



Danielle Carr
Regional Hearing Clerk (ORC-l)
U.S, En\lronmcntal PrOiection Agency - Region [X
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94[05

Daniel Fernandez (WST.3)
Waste Management Divisioll
U.S. Environmcfltal Protection Agency. Region LX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 9-t105

55 All payments shallllldicate the name of the Facihty, the Respondent's
name and address, and the EPA docket number of this action.

56. In accordance with the Debt CollectIOn Act of 1982 and U.S Treasul)
dlrecllve (TFRM 6-80(0), the payment must be reeeH'ed within thlrt)'
{3D) calendar days of the Effccuvc Date of thiS CAIFO to aVOid
addillonal charges, [fpayment is not recei\ed within thirty (30)
calendar days, illlerest will accrue from the Effective Date of this
CAIFO at the cUlTem rate published by the United States Treasury as
descnbed at 40 c.rR. § 13 II A late penalty charge of $15.00 will
be imposed after thirty (30) calendar days with an addItional S1500
charge for each subsequent thirty (30) day period. A 6% per annum
penalty will further apply on any principal amount not paid withlll
ninety (90) calendar days of the due dale. Respondent .... ill be lsable
for sllpulaled penalties as set forth below for any payment not
received by its due date,

H, Q&.LA Y IN PERfORMANCE/STIPULATED PENALTIES

57 In the event Respondent CHe falls 10 submit a payment to EPA by
the tIIne reqUIred mlhlS CAFO, Respondelll shall pa)' supulattXi
penaltIes up to liVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($50000) per day lor
the first to fifteenth day of dela~, liP to ONE THOUSAND
OOLLARS ($ I,00lJ.00) per day for the sl:\teemh to thirtIeth dar of
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dela). and up to FIFTEEN UUNDRED DOLLARS (SI,500 00) per
cia) for each day of delay thcreaflcr

~8 In lhe event Respondenl cue falls to comply \\ llh any tenus Of

PfO\ ISIOns of thIs CAfO relating 10 the performance of Ihe SEP
described in Paragrapru. :.u through 46 abo\-e andior to lhe e"tent that
the saual expendllures for the SEP do not equal or exceed lhe cost of
the SEP described In ParaGJ'3Ph 35 3bO\e. Respondent shall be hable
for stipulated penalties accordlOg 10 lhe pro\1sions set fonh belo\\

(a) E.-"cepl as prO'ided In subparagraph (b) immediately belo\\. for
a SEP \\ hlch has nOI been compleled satlsfactonly pursuant 10
this CAFO. Respondenl CHC shall pay a stipulated penalty 10
the Umted States 10 the amOllnt of up 10 EIGHT THOUSAND
THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS (S830000)

(b) If the SEP is nOI completed in accordance \\ itlt Paragraphs 33
through 46, bUI EPA detemlines that the Respondent Cl-IC: (i)
made good faith and timely efforts 10 complete Ihe project, and
(ii) certifies, with supponing documentation, that <llleast 90
percent of the amount of money which was reqmred to be spent
was expended on the SEP, CHC shall nOI be liable for any
stipulated penalty_

Ie) If the SEP b completed 10 accordaoce with Paragraphs 33
Ihrough 46. but the Respondent CHC spent less than 90 percent
of the amount of money reqlJired to be spenl for the PfoJect In

accordance \\uh Paragraph 35. CHC shan pay a stIpulated
penalty to the Untted Stales ttl the amount of ONE
THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED AND FIFTY DOLLARS
(SI150.00)

ld, lfthe SEP b completed In 3Ccordalll;:e With Pal'3graph~ J.'
Ihrou£b 46, and the Re"J'IOOdent CHC spent at least 90 perccnt
of the amount of requm..'d 10 be spenl for the prvJ~ct In

accordance \\lth Para!!faph -'5. Respondelll CHe shall not be:
hable for any slipulat..:J penalty

(c) For f.'lilure to 5ublllit th~ SEP CompletlOll Repon required by
the tllllc!SI ~peclfieJ III Para\lraph.'7 above. Rc~pvndcnt (He

,



shall pay a slipulated penally in the following amounts, as
applicable, for each day after the date that SEP Completion
Report was due, as set forth in Paragraph 37, unul the SEP
Completion Report is submilled up to FIVE HUNDRED
DOLLARS ($500.00) per day for the first to tifteenth day of
delay, up to ONE THOUSAND DOLLARS (SI,OOO.oo) per
day for the sIxteenth to thirtieth day of delay, and up to
FIFTEEN HUNDRED DOLLARS ($1500.00) per day for each
day of delay thereafter.

59. All penalties shall begin to accrue on the date that performance is due
or a violation OCClliS, and shall continue to accrue through the final
day of correction of the noncompliance or completion of the actiVity.
Nothing herein shall prevent the simultaneous accrual of separate
penalties for separate violations.

60. All penalties owed to EPA under this Section shall be due within
thirty (30) days of receipt of a \\ ritten demand by EPA for stich
penaltIes. Such demand shall describe the noncompliance and shall
indicate the amount of penalties due Interest at the current rate
published by the United States Treasury, as described at 40 C.FR .
• 13.11, shall begin to accrue on the unpaid balance at the end orthe
thirty (30) day period. Payment shall be made by certified or
cashier's check payable to "Treasmer of the United Slales'·
transmitted to the appropnate address as indicated below:

For a check drawn Oil a Us. hank scm by n:glliar (I.S. Po~tal

Service mail:

u.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 9
PO Box 37t099M
Pittsburgh, PA 15251

For a ch<!ck drawII (In a r.r 'i" hank .Ienl hy exprns mal!'

Mel10n Chent Service Cenler
ATIN- Shift Supcr.lsor 1.0\:\';00:\ 371 099M
500 Ross Slreet
Pittsburgh, PA 1526~-OOOI

,
I'
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For a check drml/l OIl a torelf~1I honk WI/h 110 (f.S brallche~'

Citibank Delaware
Global Cheque Collections
PO. Box 15962
Wilmington, DE 19850-5962

At the time payment is so made, a copy of the check shall be sent to
each of the following Region IX addres:>fs:

Danielle Carr
Regional Heanng Clerk (ORC-I)
US. Environmental Protection Agency· Region IX
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 9~ 105

and

Daniel Femandez(WST-J)
Waste Management Division
U.S. Environmental PrOleetlon Agene} - RegIOn IX
75 Ha\o\1horne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

61 All payments shallllldleate Ihe name of the FacIlity, Respondent
CHC's name and address, and the EPA docl.;,et number of this aellon,

62, The payment of stipulated penalties shall not alter in an) way
Respondent CHes obhgallon to complele the perfonnance reqUIred
hereunder.

63 The stipulated penaltIes SCi forth III thiS SCC\lOll do not preclude EPc\

from pUl'Smng any olher remedies or sanctions \\ hich lIIay be
avatlable to EPA by reason of Respondent CHe's failure to comply
with any ofthc reqlllrements ofthi~ CAFO

Re<,pondent CHe shall perform the requirements sct fonh In Ihts
CAFO I\llhinlhe IHIll: linnls established In the CMO, unl~ss

performance IS prelCllted or delay'cd sokl) by Clellts \\ hich constin:tc

16



a force majeure A force maJeur~ is defined as an c\cnl arising from
causes which are not foreseeable, which are IOtally beyond the control
of Rcspondcnt. Includmg Its consultants and contractors, wInch could
not be overcome by the exercise of due diligence, and which delay or
prevent the perfonnance of any requirement of this CAFO by the date
reqnired in the CAFO Such events do not include unanticipated or
lllcreased costs of performance. A force maJcure shalt include
IllSUffiClent availability of funds only if timely requests for such funds
were made as pan of the CNMI budgetary process

65. If any event, including a force majeure event, occurs wJuch causes or
may cause delays In the complellon of a requirement under thiS
CAFO, Respondent CHC shall nOllfy EPA in wntll1g WIthin 10 days
of the delay or Clle's knowledge of the antiCipated detay, whIchever
is earlier. lfany evcnt occurs which causes or may cause delays in the
completion of the SEP as required under this CAFO, Respondent
CHC shall notify EPA III writing within 10 days of the delay or
CHC's knO\\ledge of the anticipated delay, whichever is carlier The
notice shall deSCribe in detaIl the anticipated length of the detay, the
precise cause or causes of the detay, the measures taken and to be
taken by CHC to prevent or minimize the delay, and the timetable by
which those measures wilt be implemented (He shalt adopt all
reasonable measures to avoid or mimm;ze any such delay. Failure by
CHC 10 comply with the nOllce requirements of this Parab'Taph shall
render this Paragraph void and of no effect as to the pal1icular incident
Ifl\olved and constitute a waiver of Respondent O·IC's right to
request an extensIOn of its oblIgation under this CAFO based on such
modem

66 If the panIcs agree that the delay or anticipated delay in compliance
with this CAFO has been or will be caused by circumstances eIllirely
beyond the contJol of Respondent CHC, the lime for perfonnance
hereunder may be eXlended for a period no longer than the delay
resu!tmg. frOlll such circumstances. tn stich event. the partIes shan
stipulate to such extensIOn ofume.

67 In Ihe event that EPA docs not acrce that a delay in achienng
compliance \\llh the requiremems {lftills (AFO has been or \\ ill be
caused by circumstances beyond the control 01 Respondent CHC,
EPA \\ 111 notify Respondent (He In writmg {If ils deCISIOn and any



delays In lhe completIOn of the CAFO shall not be excused. The
burden ofprodng that any delay IS caused by circumstances entirel)
beyond the control of RespondeUl CHC shall rest with CHC.
Increased costs or expenses assocHlted with the Implementation of
actions caned for by this CAFQ shall not, in any evcm, be a basis for
changes in this CAFO or extensions of lime under the foregoing
Paragraph, Delay In achic\cment of onc interim step shall not
neces~rily justil) or excuse delay III achie\emcnt of subsequent
~teps,

RESERVATION QF RIQHIS.

68. EPA expressly reserves all Tights and defenses that It may have,

69. EPA hereby re~rves all of its statutory and regulatory powers,
authorities, rights and remedIes, both legal and equitable, including
the right to reqlure that Respondent CHC perfoTlll tasks III addition 10
those required by thiS CAFO. EPA further resen-es all of its statutory
and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and remedies, bolh legal and
eqUitable, which may pertain to Respondent CHe's r.ulure to comply
with any of the reqUirements or this CAFO, including without
limitation, the assessment ofpenallles under SectIOn 3008(c) of
RCRA, 42 USc. ~6928(c). This CAFO shall not be constOled as a
covenant not to sue, release, waiver or limitation of any rights,
remedIes, powers or authorities, cl\11 or cnmlllal. -which EPA has
under RCRA, the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended ('"CERCLA"),
or any other statutory, regulatory or common law enforcemel1l
aUlhority of the Uniled States.

70. Compliance by Respondent CHC with the lenns of this CAFQ shall
1I0t relieve CHC of ils obhg;ltiOIlS to comply Wilh RCRA or any other
apphcable local, CNMI, or federalla\\s and regulations.

~ I The entry of this C AFO and Respondent CHes consent to comply
~hallnot limit or othe["\\ ise preelud.: EPA from taking additIOnal
enforcement actIOns should EPA d~terml1le tlIat such actions are
\\arranted except as it relates to Respondent CHC's liability for
federal civil penalties for the specific alleged \"lOlallons and facts a.~

~et forth in Section C or this CAFO



72. This CAFO is not tntended to be nor shall it be construed as a pennie
This CAFO does not rellevc Respondcnt CIIC of any obligation to
obtam and comply with any local, CNMI or fedt:ral penmlS.

73. This CAFO shall not be constmed to constitute EPA approval of any
equipment or technology utilized by Respondent CHC ltl connection
with the SEP undertaken pnrsuant to this CAFO

J OTHER CLAIMS

74. Nothing in thiS CAFO shall constitute or be construed as a release
from any other claim, cause of action or demand in law or equity by
or against any person, fInn, partncrn.hip, entity or corporatlon for any
habllity it may have arising Ollt of or relating in any way to the
generation, storage, treatment, handling, trausportation, release, or
disposal of any hazardous constituents, hazardous substances,
hazardous waSles, pollutants, or contaminants found at, taken to, or
taken from the facility,

K MISCELLANEOUS

75 By signing thiS CAFO, Respondent CHC, without admitltng or
denying them, certifIes that all orthe alleged Violations set forth in
Section C of this CAFO, which are or \\ere capable of correction,
have been corrected.

76. Notwithstanding any other pro\ isiotl of this CAFO, no action or
decision by EPA pursualllto this CAFO shall constItute final agency
action giving rise to any right lojudicial review prior to EPA's
mitiation ofjudicial action to compel compliance willI this CAFO

77. This CAFO may be amended or modified only by \Hitten agreement
e~ecuted by both EPA and Respondent

78 The headmgs in thiS CMO are for con\ enience of referenet: only and
shall nO! affect mterpretallOn ofthi:. CAFO.
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79_ The Effcctive Date or this CAFO IS the date the CAFO is lik-d \-'dth
the Regional Hearmg Clerk

IT IS SO AGREED.

Date Josep ; evin illagom z, ecreta0
CNMI Department of PI IC llealth
For Respondent Commonwealth Hcahh
Ccnter. Commonwealth of the Northem
Marianas Islands

j,
Date Jeff Scott irectorl

Waste ¥anagement Division
U,S Environmental Protection Agency.
RegIon IX



FINAL QRDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that this Consen! Agreement and Flllal Order
Pursuant to 40 CFR §§22.13 and 22.18 (U.S. EPA Docket No, RCRA 09­
2007-000 I) ("CAFO") be entered and that Respondent Commonwealth
Heahh Center, Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas Islands,
("Respondent'") pay a civil penalty of EIGHT THOUSAND DOLLARS
(S8000.OO) by certIfied or cashier's check payable to "Treasurer of the
United States," and sent 111 accordance with Section G of this CAFO within
thirty (30) days after the Effective Date of this CAFO. A copy of the check
shall be sent to the EPA Region IX addresses specIfied m SectIon G of this
CAFO within such thirty (30) day period. Respondent shall also perform all
tasks required by the CAFO, including the performance of the Supplemental
EnVIronmental Project in accordance wilh Secfion D.

ThiS Final Order, once signed. shall be ell'ective immediately upon it being
filed with the ReglOnal Heanng Clerk.

I
)

J '3 '

Steven Jawgiel
Regional JudICial Officer
United States Environmental Protection Agency,
Region IX

~h( I~'f
Date

21



r

CERTIFICA TE OF SERVICE

I hereby cemfy that on the date below, the original copy of the foregomg ComplaInt,
Cons.cnt Agreement and Final Order, was filed wIth the RegIOnal Hearing Cler~ Region IX, and
that copies were sent by cemfied mail, return receipt requested, to:

Mr. Jack Taltano
Hospital Deputy Admimstrator
Commonwealth Health Center
P,O, Box 500409
Salpan, MP 96950-0267

.)(~ l
Damelle Carr
RegIonal Hearing Clerk
Office of Regional Counsel. Region IX


